(==

P STORMWATER SOLID WASTE WASTEWATER
Tacoma ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT

Environmental Services Commission Minutes

www.cityoftacoma.org
Center for Urban Waters — 325 E D St
Zoom Meeting

April 10, 2025

Chair Sutter called the meeting to order at 4:03 p.m.

Commission Members Present:  Bruce Martin, Chad Sutter, Jonathan Paul (joined online at
4:51pm), Mike Yaden, Mindi Kellar, Matthew Benedict,
David Dailey, Karen DiNicola, Jeff Paradise (arrived at 4:07 p.m.),
Marty Campbell, and Esther Beaumier*

Commission Members Absent: None
Chair Sutter welcomed everyone to the meeting and confirmed that a quorum was present.

Commissioner Benedict moved to modify the order of tonight’'s agenda to move the
Communication Team Update immediately after Public Comment. Commissioner Yaden
Seconded. Discussion followed regarding whether a motion was required to change the order of
tonight’s agenda. Although not required in this instance, the motion had already been made and
seconded, so a vote would be taken. Voice vote was taken and carried. The motion was adopted,
and the order of the agenda had been updated.

Commissioner Paradise arrived online here, at 4:07 p.m.

Public Comment

The public comment period is reserved for items on the current agenda only. Comments will be
limited to the amount of time announced by the chair, presiding officer, or staff liaison, no more
than five minutes per person per meeting.

No Public Comment was received.

Approval of meeting minutes of January 9 and February 13, 2025

Commissioner Benedict moved to approve the minutes of the January 9 and
February 13, 2025, as presented. Commissioner Martin seconded. Discussion ensued regarding
meeting notes from the March meeting and assurances that they will be made available to the
Commission and posted to the website. Voice vote was taken and carried. The minutes were
approved.

Communications Team Update

Leah Michaelsen, Communication & Engagement team, provided an update on current
initiatives. She shared details about the 17th Annual South Sound Sustainability Expo, which will
take place on Saturday, April 26, 2025, from 10 a.m. to 3 p.m. She also highlighted the


http://www.cityoftacoma.org/

Environmental Services Commission Meeting Minutes
April 10, 2025

Environmental Services (ES) partnership with the Tacoma Rainiers, noting they are in the middle
of the 2024-2026 agreement, which carries a cost of $80,000. She then played the 30-second
radio spot that airs during all home games promoting TAGRO. ES Game Night this year will be
held on May 27, 2025. It is an employee appreciation night, and all Commissioners are welcome
to attend and noted if they are interested in purchasing ticket to let her know. Discussion followed
regarding the following topics:

17" Annual South Sound Sustainability Expo
1. Commissioner Martin asked whether Ms. Michaelson would be organizing the event next
year.
a. Staff responded they were unsure who would be organizing the event, but
confirmed ES would be involved.
2. Commissioner Campbell noted that several years ago there was a "No Skateboarding"
sign posted in Tollefson Plaza and inquired whether there were plans to replace the sign.
a. Staff responded that there are currently no plans to replace the sign at this time.
3. Commissioner Beaumier stated the Tacoma-Pierce County Health Department would
attend the event.
4. Chair Sutter asked how many vendors would be participating in the event.
a. Staff responded there would be approximately 70-75 vendors and estimated around
1,500 people attended the event last year.

Environmental Services partnership with the Tacoma Rainiers
1. Commissioner Martin asked whether the sponsorship was citywide or limited to ES.
a. Staff responded that the sponsorship pertains only to ES.

Environmental Services & City of Tacoma Comprehensive Planning

Cassandra Moore, Environmental Compliance (EC), provided an overview of the regional and
city-wide comprehensive planning efforts through the lens of Environmental Services, however
reminded everyone she was not there in an EC capacity. She discussed the One Tacoma Plan
and how it relates to ES initiatives. Her presentation included a summary of additional planning
efforts currently proposed and underway. Discussion followed regarding the following topics:

One Tacoma and Comprehensive Plan
1. Commissioner DiNicola commented that the One Tacoma plan has a much different
flavor than the last plan.

a. Staff agreed.

2. Commissioner Beaumier asked how the One Tacoma plan is different.

a. Staff stated the planning committee for One Tacoma has learned from past
experiences, identifying what strategies were effective and which were not. They
attempted to make the plan less prescriptive and more flexible.

3. Commissioner DiNicola pointed out that Chapter 4 of the One Tacoma draft contained a
significant number of items attributed to Environmental Services.

a. Staff thanked her for pointing this out. In follow-up conversations with Planning
and Development Services staff, it was determined that some of these elements
were misattributed largely due to responses from ES on a previous draft not being
incorporated.

4. Commissioner Martin asked what the outcome might have been if this issue had not been
brought to the attention of staff.

a. Staff explained that the One Tacoma Plan undergoes annual updates, and the
corrections would have been addressed during a future update. They also noted




Environmental Services Commission Meeting Minutes
April 10, 2025

that City staff had identified the issue, but the correction was not yet reflected in
the draft available online. Staff added that if more information is needed, it can be
found on the official website. The Planning Commission held a public hearing for
the draft Plan on March 5, 2025. At the March 19, 2025, meeting, the Commission
reviewed the public testimony received during the hearing process and began
considering potential amendments to the draft. Subsequently, at the April 2, 2025,
meeting, the Commission introduced their own amendments. Long Range
Planning staff will return to the Planning Commission on April 16, 2025, to
continue reviewing the remaining amendments. The goal is to receive the
Planning Commission’s final recommendation by the end of April. A timeline
outlining this process is provided below.

DATE BODY ACTION

April 16,2025 | Planning Commission Amendments

April 23, 2025 | Planning Commission Recommendation

May 13,2025 | City Council- Study Session | Share Planning Commission’s Recommendation
May 13, 2025 | City Council Resolution to Set Public Hearing

June 3, 2025 City Council Public Hearing

June 10, 2025 | City Council- Study Session | Public Hearing Debrief + Amendments

June 10, 2025 | City Council First Reading of Ordinance

June 17,2025 | City Council Final Reading of Ordinance

Commissioner Paul arrived online here, at 4:51 p.m.

b. Staff mentioned that the Stormwater Comprehensive Manual will be made
available online and open for public comment.

5. Commissioner DiNicola expressed frustration regarding the Environmental Services
Commission not discussing the priority actions for wastewater. She stated that a
presentation or additional information on the Priority Actions in Chapter 9 would be
valuable for the group, as this chapter outlines the direction utilities should take to
accommodate growth. She then noted that she had been expecting information from Staff
on the Priority Actions for wastewater in Chapter 9 and emphasized that this is where the
‘rubber meets the road”.

a. Staff clarified that Chapter 9 in One Tacoma does not have the same structure as
the other chapters and there are no Priority Actions listed. Instead, the Planning
Department selected items from the Capital Improvement Plan.

6. Commissioner DiNicola stated that the Department of Ecology had sent a letter to O&M
Operations requesting clarification on the intended direction of their work on the
Wastewater Nutrient General Permit, but she did not see any actions in the letter that
indicated work should be put on hold.

7. Chair Sutter asked if the letter from Ecology could be made pubilic.

a. Staff responded that yes, the letter could be forward facing, and they would
investigate the best way to do that.

8. Commissioner DiNicola asked when the Commission would receive another update on
the Wastewater Plan, noting that the Stormwater Plan is expected to reach a final draft
status by December, and she’d like to know if Wastewater is on the same timeline.

a. Staff responded that the Wastewater Plan is currently with the Asset Management
Team.

9. Chair Sutter asked whether there was a mandated timeline for the Wastewater Plan


https://www.cityoftacoma.org/cms/One.aspx?portalId=169&pageId=15801

Environmental Services Commission Meeting Minutes
April 10, 2025

a. Staff did not indicate a specific mandated timeline.

10. Commissioner DiNicola mentioned that the News Tribune had published a “notice of
intent to sue” from the Center for Biological Diversity and Northwest Environmental
Advocates.

a. Staff noted that they are not permitted to comment on pending legal actions.

11. Commissioner DiNicola asked whether the Stormwater Technical Manual would include
input from the Planning Department, and if staff would be responsible for the review.

a. Staff responded that the same staff member currently updating the manual would
handle the planning review.

12. Commissioner DiNicola expressed concern about ensuring the public has adequate
notice of changes, especially if the manual update does not follow a set timeline and
emphasized the importance of public comment opportunities.

a. Staff clarified that the update is not an extensive re-write and therefore does not
require a 30-day notice; however, a comment period will still be provided.

Solid Waste management Operational Efficiencies

Lewis Griffith, Solid Waste Management Division Manager, gave a presentation on operational
efficiencies in solid waste management, focusing on the every-other-week garbage collection
program, which was implemented in 2013-2014 and remains in effect today. He discussed its
impact on revenue, recycling and yard waste volumes, collection rates, fuel usage, and carbon
footprint. Mr. Griffith also shared data reflecting customer impact and feedback, noting a
generally positive response to the program. Additionally, a financial overview related to the
every-other-week collection schedule was presented. Discussion followed regarding the following
topics:

Rates and Ballot Initiative for Streets

1. Commissioner Martin inquired whether the decrease in customer revenue was due to a
rate reduction or a reduction in service usage.

a. Staff responded that the revenue decrease resulted from customers switching to
smaller garbage cans better suited for their needs.

2. Chair Sutter asked whether the City took a proactive approach by reaching out to
customers to understand how the changes were affecting them and whether customers
felt they were receiving a reduced level of service. He also inquired whether the City was
able to absorb the costs associated with the changes.

a. Staff confirmed that the City was able to absorb the costs, citing reductions in
miles driven and fuel usage as contributing factors. They also noted that the City
conducted “knock and talk” outreach efforts, engaging directly with customers in
open conversations about selecting the appropriate bin size for their needs.

3. Commissioner DiNicola noted that some citizens felt like they were receiving a reduced
level of service but acknowledged that change can be difficult.

4. Commissioner Martin remarked that the information was not new; however, it effectively
illustrated the efforts of the Solid Waste Division and the positive impact the every-other-
week collection had on customers.

a. Staff stated that both perceptions and volume remained the same, while the City
was able to reduce both the volume of waste and rates.

5. Commissioner Campbell noted that there has been twelve years of uncertainty and
confusion from the customers’ perspective. However, as a citizen himself, he has
adjusted his can size up and down and found it to be very beneficial. He also mentioned
that the every-other-week collection program provides the flexibility to change can sizes
as needed. He also mentioned that over the years, he has spoken to several people, and




Environmental Services Commission Meeting Minutes
April 10, 2025

10.

11.

12.

generally, they are not complaining. He emphasized that the City has been great and
very helpful.

Commissioner Beaumier asked whether the increase in recycling was due to improved
recycling practices or if people were simply trying to reduce the contents of their garbage
bins.

a. Staff stated there was no data to support this inquiry.

Chair Sutter asked why Solid Waste was discussing a program that has been
implemented ten years ago and inquired whether the change as still in effect.

a. Staff confirmed that the change is still in effect and explained that they wanted to
highlight a positive outcome from the past and address perception, helping people
understand the reasons behind the reduction in service. They also felt this was a
great opportunity to tell the story and showcase the benefits of the reduction.

Commissioner DiNicola wanted to raise awareness to Commissioners about the ballot
initiate for streets. She noted there is reluctance to vote for the measure due to the
proposed increase, and because the General Fund is facing a shortfall. She also
mentioned that the community perceives this as just another tax, with residents only
seeing an increase in their bills.

a. Staff responded that the increase is beyond their control and noted that
information about the street’s initiative is available on the city’s website.

i. Tacoma Streets Initiative - City of Tacoma

b. Staff clarified that the referenced 33% tax increase was a change from a 1.5%
gross earnings tax on electric utilities to a 2.0% tax.

Commissioner Beaumier asked why the billing cycle changed from every other month to
a monthly schedule.

a. Staff explained that the change is tied to the Automating Meter Installation project

and the installation of automatic meters by Tacoma Public Utilities.
Commissioner Campbell reminded everyone that there are numerous exemptions and
assistance programs available for property taxes, offering a wide variety of options for
residents.
Commissioner Benedict noted an increase in residential glass tonnages collected in drop
boxes during 2022-2023 and expressed that it would be encouraging to see that positive
trend continue in 2024.

a. Staff responded stating they do not have the data at this time to advise on the
trend and will follow up.

Chair Sutter stated that Tacoma has a great model and focus and is ahead of time.

Staff Reports

ES Business and Operations update.

Mr. Fremont provided an update on the hiring process for the new Director, stating the first round
of interviews would take place on April 11, 2025.

Mr. Fremont stated he and the Chairs plan to meet shortly after each Commission meeting to
discuss future meeting topics.

Mr. Fremont and Marvin Griffin provided a brief presentation on the SR 509 & 705 cleanup
project as well as the Sanitary Sewer overflow last month in the Hosmer Stormwater Holding
Basin. Discussion ensued regarding:

1.

Commissioner DiNicola and Commissioner Benedict both inquired about the frequency of
the cleanup effort and whether it would be scheduled on a regular basis.
a. Staff responded that they believe the cleanup will occur annually.


https://www.cityoftacoma.org/cms/one.aspx?portalId=169&pageId=105019

Environmental Services Commission Meeting Minutes
April 10, 2025

Commissioner Other Items of Interest
FOG Flyer
1. Commissioner DiNicola shared that she had distributed the FOG flyer to some of her
commercial realtor contacts, who responded positively and found the information to be
helpful and easy to understand.

Solid Waste Transfer Station
1. Commissioner DiNicola reported that her recent trip to the Solid Waste Transfer Station
was very pleasant, noting a significant reduction in odors and increased helpfulness from
the staff.

a. Staff thanked her for that feedback and noted they have been particularly attentive

to customer service and facility housekeeping.
Notes from last meeting
1. Commissioner DiNicola mentioned that the minutes from the previous meeting, held on
March 13, 2025, were not approved.

a. Staff noted that the meeting held on March 13, 2025, did not have a quorum;
therefore, no official minutes were recorded. Meeting notes will be made available
to the Commission posted to the website. If a commissioner has edits to the notes,
they may reach out directly to staff.

Meeting topics
1. Chair Sutter reminded Commissioners to consider various ideas or topics for future
meetings and to send those suggestions to Mr. Fremont or Marvin Griffin.

Adjournment
The meeting adjourned at 6:07 p.m.



